
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. OATH OF OFFICE FOR COMMISSIONERS (Kevin Widener, Position #2; Kathy Kleczek, Position #3; 

Pamela Alegria, Position #4; Lylla Gaebel, Position #5)  

3. ROLL CALL 

4. ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary/Treasurer)  

5. CHANGES TO AGENDA 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

7. APPROVAL OF JUNE 22ND, 2017 MEETING MINUTES 

8. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

9. FINANCIAL REPORTS- JUNE 2017 

10. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Presentation of new website 

b. Seaside Urban Renewal District 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Payroll Procedure 

b. Board Vacancy 

c. Committee Assignments (Senior & Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee; RideCare 

Advisory Committee; NW Transit Feasibility Study Advisory Committee; Board Policy 

Committee; Northwest Area Commission on Transportation) 

d. Appointments to Senior & Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee 

e. Approval of Rider Appreciation Day  

f. Approval of National Transit Tribute to Rosa Parks Day 

g. Executive Director Evaluation  

h. Executive Director Agreement Renewal 

12. CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY July 27th, 2017 

9:00 AM 

Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 

  1



 

 

13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

14. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

16. OTHER ITEMS 

  2



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

JULY 2017 

Page 1 of 2 
 

AASHTO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS 

ACT  ACTUAL 

ACCTS  ACCOUNTS 

ADA  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

ADS  ADVERTISEMENTS 

AP  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

APTA  AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORATION ASSOCIATION 

AR  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

ASC  ASTORIA SENIOR CENTER 

BG  BACKGROUND 

BLDGING BUILDING 

BOC  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BS  BALANCE SHEET 

BUS REG FEE BUS REGISTRATION FEE 

CCC  CLASTOP COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CCCHD  CLATSOP CARE CENTER HEALTH DISTRICT 

CCO  COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CK  CHECK 

COMP  COMPUTER 

CONF  CONFERENCE 

CPCCO  COLUMBIA PACIFIC COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CRS  CLATSOP REHABILITATION SERVICES 

CSR  CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

CTAA  COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 

DHS  DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIST  DISTRICT 

DLSM  DRIVE LESS SAVE MORE 

DMAP  DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

DOT  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EQUIP  EQUIPMENT 

FHWA  FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

FTA  FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

GF  GENERAL FUND 

HR  HUMAN RESOURCES 

IGA  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

INFO  INFORMATION 

INT  INTEREST 

IS  INCOME STATEMENT 

ISN  INTEGRATED NETWORK SYSTEM 

IT  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

LGIP  LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 

LGPI  LOCAL GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL INSTITUTE 

LRCTP  LONG RANGE COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

MAINT  MAINTENANCE 

  3



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

JULY 2017 

Page 2 of 2 
 

MISC  MISCELLANEOUS 

MOS  MONTH 

MOU  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

NEMT  NON EMERGENT MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION 

NRTAP  NATIONAL RURAL AND TRIBAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

NTI  NATIONAL TRANSIT INSTITURE 

NWACT  NORTHWEST AREA COMMISSION ON TRANSPORTATION 

NWOTA  NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE 

NWRC   NORTHWEST RIDE CENTER (NOW KNOWN AS RIDECARE) 

ODOT  OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

OHA  OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

OHP  OREGON HEALTH PLAN 

OPTC  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

OPTIS  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSIT INFORMATION SYSTEM 

OR  OREGON 

OTA  OREGON TRANSIT ASSOCIATION 

OTC  OREGON TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

P&L  PROFIT AND LOSS 

PARA  PARA-TRANSIT 

PTAC  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

QTR  QUARTER 

RC  RIDECARE 

REHAB  REHABILITATION 

RFP  REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

RFQ  REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

SDAC  SENIOR AND DISABLED ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

SDAO   SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON 

SDIS  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INSURANCE SERVICES 

SETD  SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SETD GF SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SETD GEN SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SIP  SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

SSP/0401 ACCOUNT FROM OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

STF  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

STIP  SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

STS  SUNSET TRANSPORTATION SERVICES (NAME CHANGE THAT DIDN’T HAPPEN) 

TECH  TECHNOLOGY 

TGM  TRANSPORTATION GRANTS MANAGEMENT 

TO  TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS 

TPAC  TRANSPORTATION PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

TPJCC  TONGUE POINT JOB CORPS CENTER 

TSP  TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS PLAN 

YTD  YEAR TO DATE 

  4



 
 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER- Chair Kathy Kleczek called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM 
 

2. ROLL CALL: 
Present: Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Kevin Widener, Commissioner Jim Servino, Commissioner Tracy MacDonald, 
Commissioner Carol Gearin, Commissioner Lylla Gaebel and Commissioner Pamela Alegria  
 

Staff Present: Executive Director, Jeff Hazen, Executive Assistant Mary Parker, Finance Officer Tracy Lofstrom, IS/Transit 
Center Manager John Layton, Ridecare Manager Jason Jones, Operations Manager Paul Lewicki, Paratransit Manager 
Jennifer Geisler, HR Manager Tami Carlson 

 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA- Executive Director Hazen requested that the Cannon Beach IGA be added as 10 d. and Executive 
Session be added to the Agenda after the second Public Comment.  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS- None 

 

5. APPROVAL OF MAY 2017  MEETING MINUTES-  
         Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the May 2017 minutes 
         Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 

Discussion: Vice Chair Widener’s name was misspelled in the Financial Report and in his Commissioners 
report he had spoken with Representative Ellison not Allison.  
Commissioner Gearin noted that Commissioner Gaebel had actually made the 2 statements about the feasibility 
study discussion that she was listed as saying.  
Commissioner MacDonald amended his motion and approved the May 2017 minutes as corrected  
Commissioner Gearin amended her motion to second 
Motion passed unanimously 

 

6. CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS REPORT-  
Commissioner Alegria- No Report 
Vice Chair Widener- No Report 
Commissioner MacDonald- Welcomed Tracy Lofstrom as the new Financial Officer 
Commissioner Gearin- No Report 
Commissioner Gaebel- No Report 
Commissioner Servino- Reported that he had signed checks and noted that the cost of transcription of the 
budget minutes had cost a little less than $2000 and this might be a place in the future the board could look at to 
pick up money here and there.  
Chair Kleczek- Commented that the route schedules and signage that have been posted in South County have 
been quite helpful and stressed the importance of assuring that individual schedules are downloadable from our 
website.   
 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS- MAY 2017 
Executive Director Hazen introduced the new Financial Director Tracy Lofstrom. Tracy has lived in the Long Beach 
Peninsula area since she was a teen. Tracy gave an overview of her work experience which included both private and 
public finance, being the Pacific County Treasurer for 4 years, working for the Port of Ilwaco, being a private contractor 
and raising cranberries for 22 years.  

Commissioner Gaebel moved to accept the May 2017 Financial Report 
 Commissioner Servino seconded the motion 

Discussion- Commissioner Gearin pointed out that the Exception report showed there were no provider 
payments however accounts receivable showed that there had been. Tracy said she would correct this.              
Commissioner Gearin requested a copy of the Electric Charging Station lease. 

 Motion passed unanimously 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BOARD MEETING AND BUDGET HEARING MINUTES  
JUNE 22, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

  5



 
   

 

8. PUBLIC HEARING- BUDGET HEARING FOR FISCAL 2017-2018- Chair Kleczek opened the Budget Hearing at 9:24 
am. No comments were made. Hearing closed at 9:24 am. There were no recommended changes made to the Budget from the 
Budget officer or Board.  

Commissioner Gaebel moved to approve Resolution 2017-05 Adoption of the 2017-2018 Budget as 
recommended by the Budget Committee with no changes and making the appropriations and impose the tax 
levy for local government.  
Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 
Discussion- Executive Director Hazen read Resolution 2017-05 
Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS-  
a. Approval of letter from Chair Kleczek to Travel Tourism Studio- Chair Kleczek explained that at the May Board 

meeting she had brought up that she had been asked to be on the steering committee for Travel Oregon Tourism 
Studio. Between then and now the application was due and they requested a letter of support from the Board. Chair 
Kleczek said considering the resounding consensus of approval of her being on the committee she sent the letter of 
support from Sunset Transportation District to the Tourism Studio. Chair Kleczek explained that the Tourism Studio 
is a 2 plus year project that will hopefully increase the connectivity and ease of tourism in the area and has a large 
focus on including public transit in this studio. Chair Kleczek asked for Board approval of the letter in retrospect so 
she does not have to withdraw it.  

Commissioner Gaebel moved to approve the letter that Chair Kleczek had sent to Travel Oregon.  
Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion 
Discussion- Vice Chair Widener stated that he had a big problem with this letter being approved after the 
fact and the Board did not approve it. Vice Chair Widener also said the audio tape of the meeting clearly 
revealed that the Board didn’t say that, it said SETD would be a part of it, it did not say that the Board 
approved of the letter being sent. Vice Chair Widener also said this was not an action item and it was not in 
the minutes of the meeting. Vice Chair Widener also said that the letter started with “I Kathy Kleczek 
Board Chair for Sunset Empire Transportation District am writing this letter” and then it goes on to say 
there was consensus and we did not reach a consensus regarding the letter. Vice Chair Widener said he is 
on Travel Oregon’s mailing list and in and of itself he is not that worried but he has problems procedurally 
of approving an after the fact letter that we as a Board have not approved in advance. Commissioner Gaebel 
said that she believes the chair has the right to send letters on behalf of the Board when it is something we 
have already discussed and we definitely made it clear consensus wise that we wanted to peruse checking 
on this. Commissioner Gaebel also added that while it is best to do things prior to, but when you run into a 
time crunch and it not like you are spending money, that would be different. Vice Chair Widener said that 
under Board Policy # 7 any communication done by the Chair has to be approved by the Board and under 
Board Policy # 5 the Board Chair has the authority to call a special meeting if there is a timeline problem. 
5 aye and 2 nay 
Motion passed  
 

b. Ordinance 2017-01 Update- Executive Director Hazen reported that Ordinance 2017-01 goes into effect on June 24th 
and he is still running into challenges in hiring uniformed security service as they are having their own shortages. 
Commissioner Gaebel suggested calling Mel Jasmine who trains unarmed security officers. Commissioner Gearin 
suggested contacting the police as they sometimes have off duty officers that will do this.  
 

c. Follow up on FAR Part 27- Executive Director Hazen said that this was information that Commissioner Gearin had 
asked about concerning patents and inventions developed during contractual work.  

 

10. NEW BUSINESS-  
a. ODOT Agreement 32214- 5310 Capital, Planning Grant- Executive Director Hazen said this grant funds the 

Mobility Management program and the Preventative Maintenance program that guarantees we have busses operating 

2 
 

  6



 
that that we provide transportation to seniors and people with disabilities. Hazen asked that the Board approve the 
grant and authorize the Board Chair to sign it. 
Commissioner Gaebel moved to approve ODOT Agreement 32214 and approve the Board Chair to sign it 
Vice Chair Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed unanimously 
 

b. ODOT Agreement 30837 Amendment #1- Executive Director Hazen said this is the Transportation Options Grant 
that will extend funding to the program for one more year.  

Commissioner Gaebel moved to approve ODOT Amendment #1 to Agreement 30837 and approve the 
Board Chair to sign it.  
Vice Chair Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed unanimously  
 

c. Low/No Emission Letter of Commitment- Executive Director Hazen reviewed the process of applying for this grant 
and the importance of us having our name in the hat early. Hazen included the budget for the Board which shows 
what the match for this grant would be $143,495.00.  

Commissioner Servino moved to approve the Low/No Letter of Commitment 
Commissioner Gaebel seconded the motion 
Discussion- Commissioner Servino asked how long a bus like this can hold a charge. Executive Director 
Hazen said that an overnight charge should give about 180 miles. Commissioner Gaebel asked if a 
specialist is required to work on this type of motor. Executive Director Hazen said there will be in depth 
training of our staff so they can service them and the motors are small with the bulk of batteries being quite 
large. Commissioner Gearin asked what kind of warranty the busses carry and how many are in service. 
Executive Director Hazen said he would find out and let the Board know. Commissioner Gearin asked what 
the cost of a power station for the busses to plug into would be. Executive Director Hazen said around 
$97,000. Commissioner Gearin asked what electricity would cost us on a monthly basis. Hazen said he 
does not have that information yet. Commissioner Gearin asked if the busses could climb the Astoria hills. 
Executive Director Hazen said they were tested in San Francisco and did well. Commissioner MacDonald 
asked what cost per mile is for electric buses. Hazen said it is $0.19 
Motion passed unanimously  
 

d. Cannon Beach Shuttle- Inter-Governmental Agreement- Executive Director Hazen reported that this agreement will 
now expire every two years and at the end of the fiscal year. He also said the reimbursement will increase the from 
$50 to $55 the first year and $60 the second year.  

Commissioner Gearin moved to accept the Inter-Governmental Agreement for the Cannon Beach Shuttle  
Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 

   Discussion- None 
Commissioner Gearin amended her motion to include authorizing the Executive Director to sign the 
Agreement 

   Commissioner MacDonald seconded the amended motion 
   Motion passed unanimously (Commissioner Gearin was not present during the vote) 

 

11. CORRESPONDENCE- None  
 

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reviewed the report submitted for June. The new vans have 
been delivered and they are very nice. Radios will be installed today and the wraps will be done on site in Warrenton and he 
will let the board know when they are being done. Executive Director Hazen has asked Paul to do a study on improvement of 
our shelters including installing garbage cans and lighting. Executive Director Hazen said he will be looking at our liability 
coverage on the shelters as currently the glass is not covered. Executive Director Hazen also said we are still looking for 
more drivers. Commissioner Gaebel suggested posting an ad with SDAO. Commissioner Gaebel suggested that a thank you 
letter be sent to Barbara Blue for her help with the Budget process. After further discussion the Board requested that all of the 

3 
 

  7



 
Budget Committee receive a thank you letter which includes each of their business cards and will be signed by Chair 
Kleczek. Chair Kleczek welcomed Paul Lewicki as the new Operations Manager/Deputy Director.  Discussion followed 
about backup for the Executive Director and possibly having two people step up in case the Executive Director is suddenly 
unable to work, one would oversee Operations and the other Admin. Executive Director Hazen said the management team is 
working well together and at this time has chosen Paul as the Deputy Director.   
 

13. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Reports submitted for June 2017: Paul Lewicki, Operations Manager/Deputy Director, 
T.C Manager/IS- John Layton, Ride Assist- Jennifer Geisler, Mobility Management- Shana Verley, Marketing and Outreach- 
Mary Parker, Ride Care- Jason Jones and Human Resources- Tami Carlson.  
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT- None 
 

15. BREAK- Chair Kleczek called for a recess at 10:15 am. At 10:30 Chair Kleczek called the Board Meeting back to order.  
 

16. EXECUTVIE SESSION 192.660 (2) (B) Discipline of Public Officers and Employees- Chair Kleczek opened Executive 
Session at 10:31 am. Executive Session Closed and the Board Meeting called back into session and 11:09 AM.  

 

17. OTHER ITEMS-  
 
Chair Kleczek adjourned the Board meeting at 11:10 AM 
 

 
Minutes approved by:        Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 
 

 
 

________________________________________________       Date_____________________ 
Commissioner Carol Gearin, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
An audio recording of the Sunset Empire Transportation District June 2017 Board Meeting is available at:    
www.ridethebus.org-Board of Commissioners- Monthly Meeting Minutes- June 2017. 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Provide safe, reliable, relevant and sustainable transportation services to  

Clatsop County with professionalism, integrity and courtesy. 

4 
 

  8

http://www.ridethebus.org/


Sunset Empire Transportation District 

JUNE FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS & INFORMATION REPORT 
For the June 2017 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting 

  
   

*Disclaimer: The percentage of the year’s budget cited above is just to be used as a basic benchmark for the fiscal year. Individual 
budget line items will vary based on expenditure time cycles. Items such as Fuel, Wages, & Bldg. Grounds and Maintenance are more 
consistent on a monthly basis and can be used to gauge against the percentage. However, other items such as Insurance and Legal 
Counsel have irregular payment cycles and therefore are not as good to judge against the percentage.  

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

NOTE on Reviewing Financials:12 Month = 100 % of Fiscal Year Budget*      

                              
Preliminary General Fund Profit and Loss  

 
The District’s General Fund Total Year to Date (YTD) Income was $2,425,923 ($636,113 less than budget), 

79% of annual budget and 24% of monthly budget.  YTD Total Materials & Services was $567,109 ($267,939 

less than budget), 68% of annual budget and 147% of monthly budget.       

 

Revenue 

• 4000 Fares:  Revenues for the month were up $12,599 for the month and $43,145 better than budget 

year to date.   

• 4100 Contract Service-IGA: Billing not complete for last quarter of fiscal year.   

• 4200 Taxes: $20,082 was current year property tax and $1,356 prior year tax.    

• 4260 Mass Transit Assessment: $5,106 over budget. Received $18,855.71 which posted in July. 

• 4272 Parking: All but parking space 11 are leased out.  

• 4300 Interest: June interest for General Fund was $378.27 and RideCare was $1185.04. 

• 5000 Grants: Reimbursements have not been submitted for last quarter of fiscal year. Year end closing, 

reporting and reimbursements should be complete by early August 2017. 

 

 

 Expense  

• 7000 Provider Payments: Below budget for the month and $12,098 below YTD. 

• 6005 Salaries & Wages:  Reflects the open positions. 

• 8005 Audit:  2016 Audit with Boldt, Carlisle and Smith, payment made of $13,508. 

• 8006 Advertising: Up due to advertising for driver’s, finance officer and transportation ops. 

• 8020 Bldg & Grounds Maint:  8023 – replaced glass at a bus shelter, $895 and $690 for gate repair. 

• 8080 Insurance: Quarterly payment made for liability insurance. 

• 8072 Election: Fees for May, $6,908. 

• 9700 Capital Expense: Reflects payment of $133,719 for the two new buses. Paperwork has been 

submitted for reimbursement. 

• END  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  9



Sunset Empire Transportation District 

JUNE FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS & INFORMATION REPORT 
For the June 2017 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting 

  
   

*Disclaimer: The percentage of the year’s budget cited above is just to be used as a basic benchmark for the fiscal year. Individual 
budget line items will vary based on expenditure time cycles. Items such as Fuel, Wages, & Bldg. Grounds and Maintenance are more 
consistent on a monthly basis and can be used to gauge against the percentage. However, other items such as Insurance and Legal 
Counsel have irregular payment cycles and therefore are not as good to judge against the percentage.  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ride Care Fund Profit and Loss  

 

Ride Care’s (RC) total Income is 89% of total budget.  YTD revenues of $3,052,690 are $387,679 less than 

Budget. YTD Interest Income of $12,242 was $6,242 better than budgeted YTD. Materials & Services of 

$2,841,506 are $260,303 less than budget and are 92% of YTD budget.   

 

 

 

Expense  

• 7000 Contract Providers: Major providers include K &M $44,210, Wapato $82,018 and Tillamook 

$46,763. Gas Vouchers accounted for $20,659.  

• Salaries and Wages are below budget $12,520 for the month.  

• 7030 Bus Passes: Down for June $800 

• 8005 Audit: 2016 audit with Boldt, Carlisle and Smith. 

• 8139 Professional Services:  Accounting Services in April 2017, offset in Wages. 

• 8155 Telephone/Internet: June was paid in May and July was paid this month, so the service is paid up 

to date, just not showing for June expenses.  

• END 

 

    

   

  10



 7:26 AM

 07/19/17

 Accrual Basis

 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-SETD
 June 2017

Month 

Actual

Month 

Budget YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Budget to 

YTD Actual Annual Budget

YTD Act to 

Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense Better

Income (Worse)

4000 FARES 35,624.04 23,025.00 311,445.30 268,300.00 43,145.30 268,300.00 116.1%

4090 DONATIONS/COMMISSIONS 101.00 0.00 1,838.35 600.00 1,238.35 600.00 306.4%

4100 CONTRACTED SERVICES-IGA 0.00 33,425.00 89,637.21 180,917.00 (91,279.79) 180,917.00 49.5%

4200 TAXES 21,437.80 35,000.00 914,611.77 925,000.00 (10,388.23) 925,000.00 98.9%

4250 TIMBER SALES 0.00 0.00 256,771.22 160,000.00 96,771.22 160,000.00 160.5%

4260 MASS TRANSIT ASSESSMENT 0.00 13,750.00 55,032.82 55,000.00 32.82 55,000.00 100.1%

4270 RENTAL INCOME 0.00

4271 BILLBOARD LEASE 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 100.0%

4272 PARKING SPACES 712.50 760.00 8,550.00 9,120.00 (570.00) 9,120.00 93.8%

4273- Charging Station 0.00 0.00 320.47 160.00 160.47 160.00 200.3%

4270 RENTAL INCOME - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 4270 RENTAL INCOME 712.50 760.00 10,070.47 10,480.00 (409.53) 10,480.00 96.1%

4300 INTEREST 378.27 400.00 5,851.05 4,800.00 1,051.05 4,800.00 121.9%

4310 MISC INCOME 0.00 847.48 847.48

4500 RC PROVIDER SERVICE REIM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5000 GRANTS 174,696.00 659,389.00 666,002.00 1,128,379.00 (462,377.00) 1,128,379.00 59.0%

5080 OREGON STF FUNDS 0.00 214,640.00 113,740.00 328,560.00 (214,820.00) 328,560.00 34.6%

Other Types of Income 75.00 75.00 75.00

Total Income 233,024.61 980,389.00 2,425,922.67 3,062,036.00 (636,113.33) 3,062,036.00 79.2%

Gross Profit 233,024.61 980,389.00 2,425,922.67 3,062,036.00 (636,113.33) 3,062,036.00 79.2%

Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 84,818.49 138,664.00 1,079,174.51 1,243,631.00 164,456.49 1,243,631.00 86.8%

6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 7,335.74 15,816.00 116,572.05 153,610.00 37,037.95 153,610.00 75.9%

6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 23,195.70 24,597.00 285,838.49 295,166.00 9,327.51 295,166.00 96.8%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 115,349.93 179,077.00 1,481,585.05 1,692,407.00 210,821.95 1,692,407.00 87.5%

2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 0.00

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 825.12 1,480.00 5,652.76 17,750.00 12,097.24 17,750.00 31.8%

7030 BUS PASSES 0.00 340.00 0.00 4,080.00 4,080.00 4,080.00 0.0%

8005 AUDIT 13,508.00 0.00 17,776.00 26,160.00 8,384.00 26,160.00 68.0%

8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 2,096.51 350.00 3,786.86 4,200.00 413.14 4,200.00 90.2%

8010 BANK FEES 166.36 250.00 3,221.21 3,005.00 (216.21) 3,005.00 107.2%

8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 4,377.74 2,114.00 32,637.59 25,373.00 (7,264.59) 25,373.00 128.6%

8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 4,983.74 2,245.00 39,082.14 26,237.00 (12,845.14) 26,237.00 149.0%

8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL 680.12 5,100.00 13,878.05 37,042.00 23,163.95 37,042.00 37.5%

8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 155.00 267.00 1,652.36 3,200.00 1,547.64 3,200.00 51.6%

8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 215.50 495.00 10,550.99 9,280.00 (1,270.99) 9,280.00 113.7%

8053 IGA - DUES AND FEES 0.00 0.00 16,667.00 16,700.00 33.00 16,700.00 99.8%

8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 1,568.65 1,066.00 11,275.44 16,750.00 5,474.56 16,750.00 67.3%

8061 EQUIPMENT LEASE/RENT 515.00 458.00 5,651.57 25,500.00 19,848.43 25,500.00 22.2%

8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 356.50 3,241.00 8,498.77 39,510.00 31,011.23 39,510.00 21.5%

8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 72.89 100.00 6,824.20 4,000.00 (2,824.20) 4,000.00 170.6%

8072 Election Fees 6,908.04 0.00 6,908.04 4,000.00 (2,908.04) 4,000.00 172.7%

8075 FUEL 19,209.59 19,905.00 120,594.15 238,772.00 118,177.85 238,772.00 50.5%

8080 INSURANCE 15,232.40 0.00 58,714.18 56,142.00 (2,572.18) 56,142.00 104.6%

8090 LEGAL ADS 335.04 400.00 790.78 800.00 9.22 800.00 98.8%

8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 140.00 1,500.00 2,116.00 6,400.00 4,284.00 6,400.00 33.1%

8100 MEETING EXPENSE 1,069.15 200.00 2,580.68 1,400.00 (1,180.68) 1,400.00 184.3%

8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,973.97 2,000.00 13,061.35 15,450.00 2,388.65 15,450.00 84.5%

8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 0.00 160.00 1,718.80 2,080.00 361.20 2,080.00 82.6%

8135 PRINTING 1,455.46 3,052.00 9,394.06 33,950.00 24,555.94 33,950.00 27.7%

8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,577.50 3,233.00 25,642.80 32,850.00 7,207.20 32,850.00 78.1%

8140 SUBGRANT PASS THROUGH 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.0%

8150 TAXES/LICENSES/BUS REG FEE 209.00 80.00 283.22 330.00 46.78 330.00 85.8%

8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE 1,264.48 1,771.00 23,110.81 21,296.00 (1,814.81) 21,296.00 108.5%

8160 UNIFORMS 182.68 3,000.00 3,305.93 5,924.00 2,618.07 5,924.00 55.8%

8165 UTILITIES 1,999.79 1,600.00 18,931.90 21,667.00 2,735.10 21,667.00 87.4%

8170 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS 10,880.62 10,200.00 102,801.78 120,200.00 17,398.22 120,200.00 85.5%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 94,958.85 64,607.00 567,109.42 835,048.00 267,938.58 835,048.00 67.9%

Total Expense 210,308.78 243,684.00 2,048,694.47 2,527,455.00 478,760.53 2,527,455.00 81.1%

Net Ordinary Income 22,715.83 736,705.00 377,228.20 534,581.00 157,352.80 534,581.00 70.6%

 Page 1 of 2  11



 7:26 AM

 07/19/17

 Accrual Basis

 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-SETD
 June 2017

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

3. OTHER EXPENSES

9610 CLATSOP BANK-PRINCIPAL 5,640.98 5,653.41 66,343.45 66,421.11 77.66 66,421.11 99.9%

9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 932.52 902.09 12,538.55 12,460.89 (77.66) 12,460.89 100.6%

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 6,573.50 6,555.50 78,882.00 78,882.00 0.00 78,882.00 100.0%

9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 334.40 334.00 (0.40) 334.00 100.1%

9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 100.0%

9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 3,391.50 4,389.00 7,780.50 8,778.00 997.50 8,778.00 88.6%

9700 CAPITAL  EXPENSE 133,719.00 410,000.00 346,650.00 797,000.00 450,350.00 797,000.00 43.5%

9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 106,104.00 0.00 106,104.00 106,104.00 106,104.00 0.0%

9850 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Other Expense 143,684.00 527,048.50 471,646.90 1,029,098.00 557,451.10 1,029,098.00 45.8%

Net Other Income -143,684.00 -527,048.50 -471,646.90 -1,029,098.00 557,451.10 -1,029,098.00 45.8%

-120,968.17 209,656.50 -94,418.70 -494,517.00 400,098.30 -494,517.00 19.1%

 Page 2 of 2  12



 8:14 AM

 07/19/17

 Accrual Basis

 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-RiDECARE
 June 2017

Month 

Actual

Month 

Budget YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Budget to 

YTD Actual

Annual 

Budget

YTD Act to 

Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense Better

Income (Worse)

4300 INTEREST 1,185.04 500.00 12,241.76 6,000.00 6,241.76 6,000.00 204%

4310 MISC INCOME 0.00 28.00 28.004500 RC PROVIDER SERVICE REIM 0.00

4500 RC PROVIDER SERVICE REIM 267,928.13 300,009.00 3,040,420.31 3,434,370.00 (393,949.69) 3,434,370.00 89%

Other Types of Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 269,113.17 300,509.00 3,052,690.07 3,440,370.00 (387,679.93) 3,440,370.00 89%

269,113.17 300,509.00 3,052,690.07 3,440,370.00 (387,679.93) 3,440,370.00 89%

Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 33,744.19 46,264.43 414,286.62 493,537.60 79,250.98 493,537.60 84%

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 24,013.12 34,191.66 319,981.94 350,930.63 30,948.69 350,930.63 91%

6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 2,002.62 4,277.29 31,041.76 45,204.75 14,162.99 45,204.75 69%

6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 7,728.45 7,492.48 63,262.92 97,402.22 34,139.30 97,402.22 65%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 33,744.19 46,264.43 414,286.62 493,537.60 79,250.98 493,537.60 84%

2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 0.00

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 249,379.50 242,977.00 2,704,836.08 2,781,506.00 76,669.92 2,781,506.00 97%

7030 BUS PASSES 700.00 1,500.00 20,680.00 18,000.00 (2,680.00) 18,000.00 115%

7050 DMAP/CCO Annual Adjustment 0.00 70,000.00 16,302.00 140,000.00 123,698.00 140,000.00 12%

8005 AUDIT 3,377.00 600.00 4,444.00 6,540.00 2,096.00 6,540.00 68%

8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 0.00 200.00 468.58 2,000.00 1,531.42 2,000.00 23%

8010 BANK FEES 68.05 14.00 196.05 171.00 (25.05) 171.00 115%

8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 677.20 683.00 6,318.72 8,190.00 1,871.28 8,190.00 77%

8025 BUS PASSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 1,753.87 635.00 8,823.58 7,609.00 (1,214.58) 7,609.00 116%

8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL 0.00 490.00 632.45 6,788.00 6,155.55 6,788.00 9%

8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 164.00 100.00 2,430.25 1,200.00 (1,230.25) 1,200.00 203%

8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 0.00 0.00 162.66 2,170.00 2,007.34 2,170.00 7%

8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 0.00 1,000.00 7,504.30 19,700.00 12,195.70 19,700.00 38%

8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 0.00 500.00 0.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 2,400.00 0%

8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 0.00 100.00 26.99 1,800.00 1,773.01 1,800.00 1%

8072 Election Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0%

8080 INSURANCE 1,444.85 1,430.00 8,395.83 5,742.00 (2,653.83) 5,742.00 146%

8090 LEGAL ADS 0.00 100.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0%

8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0%

8100 MEETING EXPENSE 0.00 100.00 170.87 1,200.00 1,029.13 1,200.00 14%

8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 447.29 343.00 4,793.15 4,050.00 (743.15) 4,050.00 118%

8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 0.00 40.00 429.95 520.00 90.05 520.00 83%

8135 PRINTING 343.62 250.00 589.15 3,000.00 2,410.85 3,000.00 20%

8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,650.92 9,560.00 11,889.40 40,000.00 28,110.60 40,000.00 30%

8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE 226.28 3,267.00 34,227.33 39,184.00 4,956.67 39,184.00 87%

8160 UNIFORMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8165 UTILITIES 825.40 620.00 8,184.24 8,339.00 154.76 8,339.00 98%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 263,057.98 334,509.00 2,841,505.58 3,101,809.00 260,303.42 3,101,809.00 92%

Total Expense 296,802.17 380,773.43 3,255,792.20 3,595,346.60 339,554.40 3,595,346.60 91%

Net Ordinary Income -27,689.00 -80,264.43 -203,102.13 -154,976.60 48,125.53 -154,976.60 131%

Other Income/Expense

 Page 1 of 2  13



 8:14 AM

 07/19/17

 Accrual Basis

 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-RiDECARE
 June 2017

Month 

Actual

Month 

Budget YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Budget to 

YTD Actual

Annual 

Budget

YTD Act to 

Budget

3. OTHER EXPENSES

9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 105.60 106.00 0.40 106.00 100%

9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 100%

9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 1,071.00 1,386.00 2,457.00 2,772.00 315.00 2,772.00 89%

9655 DMAP REPAYMENT AGREEMENT 36,343.25 36,344.00 145,373.00 145,373.00 0.00 145,373.00 100%

9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 0%

37,414.25 237,730.00 159,935.60 360,251.00 200,315.40 360,251.00 44%

Net Other Income -37,414.25 -237,730.00 -159,935.60 -360,251.00 200,315.40 -360,251.00 44%

-65,103.25 -317,994.43 -363,037.73 -515,227.60 152,189.87 -515,227.60 70%

 Page 2 of 2  14



 8:41 AM

 07/19/17

 Accrual Basis

 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Balance Sheet
 As of June 30, 2017

ASSETS LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Current Assets Liabilities

Checking/Savings Current Liabilities

1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS 688,722.96 Accounts Payable

1040 TILLS 360.00 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

1050 RIDECARE FUND BANK ACCTS 897,132.06 2010 SETD GENERAL FUND A/P27,048.50

Total Checking/Savings 1,586,215.02 2020 RIDECARE FUND A/P100.00

Accounts Receivable Total 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES27,148.50

1200 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 94,884.00 Total Accounts Payable 27,148.50

1250 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLES 45,357.23 Other Current Liabilities 56,022.37

1251 PASS TRANSIT RECEIVABLES -7.00 Total Current Liabilities 83,170.87

Total Accounts Receivable 140,234.23 Long Term Liabilities

Other Current Assets 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM

1400 PREPAID EXPENSES 12,100.50 2810 DUE TO RIDECARE -220,178.82

1500 UNDEPOSITED FUNDS -2.20 2815 DUE TO/(FROM) SETD G F220,178.82

Total Other Current Assets 12,098.30 Total 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM 0.00

Total Current Assets 1,738,547.55 Total Long Term Liabilities 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 1,738,547.55 Total Liabilities 83,170.87

Equity

3200  GF PRIOR PERIOD ADJUST -8,891.00

3700 FUND BALANCE NWRC-RESTRICT 1,311,965.11

3800 FUND BALANCE GENERAL FUND 789,741.87

3900 RETAINED EARNINGS 21,246.17

Net Income -458,685.47

Total Equity 1,655,376.68

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,738,547.55

 Page 1 of 1  15



 8:46 AM

 07/19/17
 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 A/R Aging Summary
 As of June 30, 2017

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

CCC 60.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.00

CLATSOP BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE 330.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 330.00

CLATSOP COUNTY TREASURER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,357.23 45,357.23

DHS - CHILD WELFARE-CLATSOP 933.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 933.00

DSHS-Childrens Admin Office 144.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 144.00

ISN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -330.00 -330.00

ODOT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -20.00 -20.00

OR DHS-VOCATIONAL REHAB SERVICES 0.00 -7.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -7.00

OR DHS - ASTORIA - SSP/0401 850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850.00

OR TREASURY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

P-ALLSTATE INSURANCE AGENCY 142.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 142.50

P-ANDI WARREN INSURANCE AGENCY 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50

P-CELLAR ON 10TH, THE 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00

P-H&R Block 142.50 0.00 0.00 47.50 0.00 190.00

P-HOMESPUN QUILTS 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00

P-HOXIE, RONALD 47.50 0.00 0.00 47.50 0.00 95.00

P-IMPACT THRIFT 47.50 42.50 0.00 95.00 0.00 185.00

P-THORSEN, MARY 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00

Providence Seaside Hospital 0.00 132.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 132.00

RC-PASSES 0.00 3,615.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,615.00

RC-SETD PARA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ZZZ-OPENING BALANCE ADJUSTMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 3,029.50 3,782.50 0.00 190.00 45,007.23 52,009.23

 Page 1 of 1  16



Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 59.88 17.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 77.32
MTR WESTERN BUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -178.04 -178.04
PACIFICSOURCE ADMINISTRATORS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PP-GF_for concversion 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PP-RC_for conversion adj 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RC-K & M MEDIVAN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 30.00
SDIS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SNOW & SNOW ATTORNEYS AT LAW 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 59.88 17.44 0.00 0.00 -148.04 -70.72

8:51 AM Sunset Empire Transportation District
07/19/17 A/P Aging Summary

As of July 19, 2017

Page 1

  17



 8:57 AM

 07/19/17
 Sunset Empire Transportation District

 Check Detail
 June 2017

Num Date Name Paid Amount

06/30/2017 CLATSOP COMMUNITY BANK 6,573.50

4490 06/06/2017 RC-SKINNYS TEXACO 5,411.85

4491 06/06/2017 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 9,743.00

4492 06/06/2017 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 16,772.05

4498 06/13/2017 RC-K & M MEDIVAN 7,000.38

4505 06/13/2017 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 10,787.00

4506 06/13/2017 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 14,095.50

4516 06/19/2017 RC-K & M MEDIVAN 5,468.74

4523 06/19/2017 RC-SKINNYS TEXACO 6,586.22

4524 06/19/2017 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 11,369.00

4526 06/19/2017 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 17,173.52

4527 06/19/2017 RC-WILCOX & FLEGEL 6,267.06

4530 06/19/2017 RC-K & M MEDIVAN 8,633.95

4531 06/21/2017 RC-OR DHS 36,343.25

4536 06/29/2017 RC-HOT SHOT TRANSPORTATION 5,039.63

4537 06/29/2017 RC-K & M MEDIVAN 14,555.29

4543 06/29/2017 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 14,864.00

4544 06/29/2017 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 18,169.81

4555 06/30/2017 RC-K & M MEDIVAN 8,552.29

4556 06/30/2017 RC-LEE, RYAN 6,416.82

4558 06/30/2017 RC-METRO WEST AMBULANCE 10,566.86

4561 06/30/2017 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 15,807.33

17015 06/13/2017 BOLDT, CARLISLE & SMITH, LLC 14,270.00

17026 06/13/2017 JACKSON & SON OIL, INC. 5,384.75

17034 06/13/2017 WILCOX & FLEGEL 6,324.09

17036 06/19/2017 CLATSOP COUNTY CLERK 6,908.04

17069 06/29/2017 SDIS 15,291.25

17074 06/30/2017 CREATIVE BUS SALES 133,719.00

 Page 1 of 1  18



  19



  20



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 10.b Seaside Urban Renewal District 

 

As you will recall, I sent this packet out to you earlier this month to give you the opportunity to 

read it and give you time to think about any recommendations you would like to put forth on the 

plan. 

 

When the Board agrees on the recommendations that they would like to make on the plan, staff 

will compose a letter to the City and submit it with the Chairperson’s signature.  There is a 

public hearing scheduled for August 14th so the letter will arrive at the City prior to the hearing. 

 

I have also enclosed a copy of ORS 457.085 which confirms the procedure that urban renewal 

agency must follow.  Section (5) refers to their requirements in regards to other taxing districts. 

  21



  22



  23



  24



  25



  26



  27



  28



  29



  30



  31



  32



  33



  34



  35



  36



  37



  38



  39



  40



  41



  42



  43



  44



  45



  46



  47



  48



  49



  50



  51



  52



  53



  54



  55



  56



  57



  58



  59



  60



  61



  62



  63



  64



  65



  66



  67



  68



  69



  70



  71



  72



  73



  74



  75



  76



  77



  78



  79



  80



  81



  82



  83



  84



  85



  86



  87



  88



  89



  90



  91



  92



  93



  94



  95



  96



  97



  98



  99



  100



  101



  102



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 11.a Payroll Procedure  

 

For quite some time, I have questioned why RideCare had so much cash on hand in the LGIP 

account.  At times, it was around $1,200,000.  Early in my employment, I was led to believe that 

the general fund was paying RideCare’s payroll as a payback for some of the wrongful acts from 

years ago.  Al had the same understanding as I did.  Last year, I directed Al to dig through 

everything in the office including files and electronic files from the previous Finance Officer to 

find a document that showed anything related to this so I could learn when this payback would 

be over and done with.  He spent a considerable amount of time going through everything but 

wasn’t able to find anything.  There was talk amongst some of the staff that it was part of the 

settlement we had with DHS but I said that wasn’t the case, that was a totally separate issue that 

stemmed from an audit the State had done on RideCare billings.  

 

Having found nothing, I had Mary call our former HR Officer to find out what she knew.  After 

talking with her and learning what it was all about, Mary transferred the call to me and I spoke to 

her.  She explained that wasn’t the case at all.  At the bank, we have a separate payroll account.  

When payroll is processed every other week, the payroll paperwork is reviewed and approved by 

the Executive Director and then a transfer of cash from the general fund bank account is made to 

the payroll bank account.  Each month she would fill out a form listing all of the personnel costs 

attributed to RideCare and then the former Finance Officer would transfer cash from the 

RideCare bank account to the general fund bank account.  She told me that she had explained 

this to Tami but Tami said she was never told about it by her and that the former Finance Officer 

had never asked her for the form.  Al also stated that he was never told about this as well.  Tami 

went through the files and found the last form that was partially filled out and it was the first half 

of September of 2014.  This means that there were no cash transfers between the RideCare bank 

account and the general fund bank account had been done since the month before I was hired. 

 

Tracy and Tami calculated the total dollars for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and that 

totaled $358,046.72.  That amount was transferred from the RideCare LGIP account to the 

general fund LGIP account prior to the last day of the fiscal year so personnel costs were 

properly paid out of the correct bank/investment account. 

 

This means that ten months of fiscal 2015 and all of fiscal 2016 were not done correctly.  We are 

still awaiting to hear back from the audit firm what to do about that since those years are long 

closed.  I’m also inquiring why this wasn’t discovered in an audit.  The costs were attributed to 

the correct funds within the financials but the cash was not moved as it should have been.  

Maybe that’s why it wasn’t noticed.  The balance sheets have shown the funds being in balance 

all along but the cash was sitting in the wrong bank or investment accounts.   

  103



Now that Tami is aware of the process, she will now be turning in the form to Tracy monthly and 

Tracy will keep them on file and do transfers on a quarterly basis.  Tracy, Tami, and I have 

entered this on our calendars so we are making sure that it is done. 

 

 

 

 

  104



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 11.b Board Vacancy 

As you can see by the attached letter, Jim Servino has submitted his resignation from the Board 

effective August 31, 2017.   

Staff is recommending that the Board accept the resignation as of August 31st, 2017 and direct 

staff to advertise the vacancy. 

 

  105



  106



  107



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda item 11.d  Appointments to Senior & Disabled (S&D) Transportation Advisory 

Committee 

  

The S&D Committee is recommending that the Board of Commissioners reappoint 

Barbara Carson to the S&D Transportation Advisory Committee and direct staff to 

advertise for the 2 vacant positions. 

  

 

  108



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 11.e Rider Appreciation Day 

 

For the last several years, SETD has held Rider Appreciation Day on the same day as Project 

Homeless Connect.  Project Homeless Connect is going to be held on January 30th, 2018 this 

fiscal year.  We budget for this each year within operations. 

 

Staff is recommending that we continue the tradition of celebrating Rider Appreciation Day on 

January 30th, 2018 and offer free rides for all routes within the County for the day. 

 

 

  109



Date: July 21, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: National Transit Tribute to Rosa Parks Day 

 

Transit agencies across the nation will be paying tribute to Rosa Park’s stance against 

discrimination on a bus on December 1, 1955.   

 

Staff is requesting that the Board direct staff to form a resolution to pay tribute to Rosa Parks to 

be read at a Board meeting prior to December 1st and to allow staff to reserve a seat at the front 

of each bus that is on a route on December 1st. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  110



Date: July 20, 2017 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Tami Carlson 

Re:  Agenda Item 11.g Executive Director Performance Evaluation 2017 

 

Per SETD Policy, each year, the Board conducts a performance evaluation for the Executive 

Director.  It is time to move forward and appoint the subcommittee for this process.  The 

subcommittee usually includes the Board Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary Treasury and the Human 

Resource Officer. 

The evaluation process is designed to help the district to fully accomplish its goals.  The Board 

will determine those goals and objectives to reaffirm the SETD mission, strategic direction and 

future of the district.  The Board determines the appropriate compensation package based on the 

Executive Director’s annual performance evaluation.                     

  111



 
 Date: July 21, 2017  

 

To: Board of Commissioners  

 

From: Mary Parker  

 

Re: Agenda Item 11. h Executive Director Employment Agreement  

 

Executive Director Jeff Hazen’s Employee Agreement will expire on October 31, 2017. Pursuant to 

the agreement, the agreement will automatically renew if notice is not given by the Board by 

August 2, 2017. The Board will need to determine what action they would like to take.  

  112



Executive Director Report 

July Board Meeting 

 

-Bus RFP’s 

-E-Fare Update 

-IGA w/Clatsop County Emergency Services 

-Bus Roadeo 

-Barbeque 

 

Weekly Reports: 

 

6/13/17 

Good morning, I already reported on the meetings in Salem last week so I won’t repeat all of that 

excitement.  We had Shem and Chris from Rogue Valley Transportation visit RideCare last 

week.  Chris is the software developer that RVTD hired to develop the new software program to 

replace OBSS.  They were able to meet with each employee and show them the basics of the new 

software and how to use it.  I may have mentioned it before but when I sat in on a webinar with 

them, I found the program to be very user friendly and easy enough that I feel that I could walk 

into RideCare and start answering calls and using it!  At the last meeting Lylla recommended 

getting ahold of Mel Jasmin to see if he could recommend someone that could do the security 

that we want to start enforcing the ordinance.  Good call Lylla!  He put me in touch with Ed 

Hauer who has a security business.  I had no idea he had that besides his small equipment 

business in Astoria!    We are working out the details and should have something set up very 

soon so we can move forward on this.  On Thursday, I went to Banks for the NWACT meeting.  

Kathy was also there so I’ll let her report out at the Board meeting last week.  I’ll only mention 

that Senator Johnson was there and did not mince words! (in other words, since this email is a 

public document, I can’t type some of the words she used!)  During our Team meeting on Friday, 

we selected Steve Weinert as our Employee of the Quarter.  Steve does a spectacular job of 

writing driver schedules with the limited amount of drivers we have.   His plate is overflowing 

everyday but he always has a smile on his face!  We are fortunate to have him!  We have started 

radio ads for recruiting drivers and will also be doing a large ad in the Daily Astorian.  We are 

having a large banner made to hang on the fence at the Warrenton yard since we have a lot of 

truck traffic drive by every day in hopes maybe a log truck or chip truck driver may want to 

make a change.  We can also attach it to a bus and have the bus parked in a high visibility 

location. 

 

7/12/17 

I’m sure you all know that the Transportation Bill passed in the legislature and I would like to 

share a couple of highlights with you.  First of all, the original bill had a “poison pill” in it, 

meaning that if any portion of the bill was referred to the voters and the voters voted against that 

portion, the entire bill would be voided.  The poison pill was taken out of the final version.  The 

  113



transit piece of the bill remained intact with the 1/10th of 1% employee tax as the funding source 

for transit.  The employee tax will begin being collected on July 1, 2018 so we won’t see any 

funds for a while.  Rules have to be worked out and while I was at the PTAC meeting on 

Monday, Hal Gard made it very clear that he is not one that believes in ODOT making the rules, 

that there must be work group(s) to help craft the rules for implementation.  I hope that I will be 

a part of that. 

 

So, what can Sunset Empire Transportation District expect to see in the way of funding?  Here 

are the numbers: 

 

2017-19 Biennium:  $695,445 

2019-21 Biennium:  $1,579,677 

2021-23 Biennium:  $1,743,253 

2023-25 Biennium:  $1,923,981 

2025-27 Biennium:  $2,131,944 

 

This is a game changer for the entire transit family in Oregon!  A lot of hard work was put into 

getting this package put together.  A lot more work is ahead of us as the rules get crafted but 

fortunately we have a little time to thoughtfully put together the rules.  The approach the Joint 

Committee took was brilliant by going all over the state to listen to the needs of the people and 

they consistently heard that transit was crucial everywhere.  The Governor’s Vision Panel did the 

same thing and heard the same thing.  One of the things that I shared at both the PTAC meeting 

on Monday and the OTA meeting on Tuesday was the fact that we recently completed our long 

range comprehensive transportation plan, and now we have a funding source to assist moving 

forward with it!  Julie Brown who is the General Manager of RVTD in Medford and the 

President of OTA has been getting calls from all over the nation asking how we were able to get 

this passed!  She shared that there was a unified voice that never wavered in the message of the 

importance of transit in all areas from large urban areas to extremely rural areas. 

 

I hope that you share my excitement with this, the atmosphere over the last couple of days in 

Salem was like nothing I have ever seen there.  Smiles and hugs were abundant!  I think Ernie 

Palmer, my counterpart in Klamath Falls who is retiring this month said it best, “I’ve spent 43 

years in transit and I think this is the most exciting going away present  a guy could ask for!”   

 

So here’s my virtual glass raised with a toast that the future of SETD has just gotten a whole lot 

brighter!!! 

 

7/6/17 

I’ve been continuing to work with Groupon on the potential for the NW Connector to run a 

special.  I’ve got most of the information I need and will be discussing it with the partners next 

week at our meeting.  The Low/No grant was successfully submitted to the FTA.  All of the 

applications are being reviewed by the FTA.  I have no idea how long it will be until decisions 

are made on the applications.  I would assume it is several months.  I’ve working on the 

  114



Management Discussion & Analysis of the FY 2016 audit and have submitted it to the auditors.  

They are in the process of doing their final review.  RideCare had a great training session on 

Trauma Informed Care.  It has given them tools to deal with people that have experienced 

various types of trauma in their lives and how to best communicate with them.   

We have gotten one of the new para-transit vans wrapped this week and Paul drove it in the 

Warrenton parade this week to show it off.  I have attached a picture of it.  The other one will be 

wrapped soon.  We are excited to have these added to our fleet!  I’m pleased to report that in our 

second round of recruitment, we have received a few applications for the Transportation Options 

Specialist position that is vacant.  I’m very confident that we will be able to select one of the 

candidates by next week.  I’ll be spending considerable time this week and next week digging 

deeper into the E-fare systems.  As you recall, I’ve been working with the consultants for Trimet 

on the Hop Pass program and just received some jaw dropping cost estimates for it.  I have also 

mentioned that I went to Medford to see the system that RVTD has gone with and I was very 

impressed with it.  Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council (COIC) was in Medford also and 

they are going to go with that system as well.  I’ve been talking with their senior planner and he 

shared some cost estimates that he received when they did their due diligence in getting quotes 

for E-fare systems.  Now it’s our turn to do our due diligence before moving forward. 

 

 

 

  115



 

 

Rider Report 

July Board Meeting Report 

John Layton 

 

“The Bus” (Fixed Route) Highlights: 

• 18,259 people used fixed routes in June for an average of 608.6 riders per day.  

• 2.4% increase in average passengers who rode fixed routes per day from last June (594.4 

to 608.6) 

• 10.1 people per hour, on average, got on any fixed route at any time that the bus runs in 

June.  6.3% increase (9.5 to 10.1 from last June.  

• 0.6% decrease in the ratio of elderly/disabled riders from last June (20.1% to 19.9%) 

 

RideAssist Highlights: 

 

• 859 rides were provided by RideAssist in June for an average of 34.4 rides per day. 

• 8.4% increase in average RideAssist passengers per day from last June (31.7 to 34.4) 

• 6 % increase in all ADA Paratransit rides from last June (499 to 529) 

 

Clatsop Care Center Health District Highlights: 

 

• 12 rides were provided by SETD in June for an average of 4 riders per day. 

 

System Highlights: 

 

• 19,130 people used Sunset Empire Transportation in June for an average of 637.7 riders 

per day. 

• 3.1 % increase in all average passengers per day from last June (618.7 to 637.7) 

  116



Rider Report

July Board Meeting Report

John Layton

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Rider Breakdown by Route

Senior Disabled Passes

Student Job Corp Veterans

  117



Rider Report

July Board Meeting Report

John Layton

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jun-16

SETD Rides

Shuttles

Paratransit

Route 10

Route 11

Route 12

Route 15

Route 21

Route 101

Columbia

Pacific

Street Car

  118



Operations Report 

July Board Meeting  

Paul Lewicki 

 

I am learning some of the more interesting and challenging aspects of Operations at SETD.  I am 

pleasantly overwhelmed by the cooperative, committed, professional performance of the folks in 

Operations and feel privileged to be a part of the department. 

We ran vehicles in the local Fourth of July parades in Seaside and Warrenton.  Turnout in both 

locations was very strong.  Seaside enjoyed the district’s Trolley Bus which was decorated by 

Shana and her family as well as a few local citizens who helped decorate the bus in exchange for 

the opportunity to ride the Trolley along the parade route.   I had the honor of driving the new 

van, #1702, in the Warrenton parade.  I was pleased to be able to show off the new vehicle with a 

never-before-seen graphics wrap! 

We received our two paratransit vans that were originally due in February of this year.  One was 

wrapped in our shop on July 3rd so that it would be ready for the parade in Warrenton.  The 

second van was wrapped on July 15th, and will be placed in service during the week of July 17th.  

Each van is configured to carry 11 ambulatory riders, or 5 wheelchair riders, or certain 

combinations of both. 

We continue our efforts to attract new drivers, while our current ranks work hard to cover the 

routes with reduced time off. 

Jason and I are working together to improve housekeeping at the Warrenton facility.  We are 

tidying up the grounds, hauling away the clutter, and assessing stored items - furniture, obsolete 

computer hardware, etc. - to determine whether we should continue to store them, or free up the 

space for more current operational needs. 

  119



RIDE ASSIST Report 

July Board Meeting  

Jennifer Geisler 

 

• RideAssist provided transportation for 223 RideCare rides, 62 escorts and 529 ADA rides.  

That is 859 rides for an average of 34 rides per day. 

  

• Dial-A-Ride had 0 rides for the month of June.  

 

• We received eight new ADA paratransit applications and approved four in June. 

 

• For the month of June, we provided six ADA weekend ride requests on three different 

weekends. 

 

• The two new Paratransit vans were delivered to the Warrenton lot.  The two-way radios were 

installed and they were scheduled to be wrapped in July and then ready for service.  

 

• We started a forth RideAssist driver the second half of June.  Having four drivers on the road, 

we have been able to provide more service for RideCare and eliminate a lot of “wait-time” for 

clients using our service. 

 

 

 

 

 

Paratransit Fares Collected for June 

• Para-transit Fares:  $ 866 

• Dial-A-Ride  $ 0 

• Tickets Collected:  $ 469 

• Medicaid Collected: $ 3736 

• Ticket books sold:  $ 270  

• Tips collected  $18  

  120



Marketing & Outreach Report 

July Board Meeting  

Mary Parker 

 

Transportation Options- I have been working with the Kelly Bantle from PacWest who does the 

marketing for the Transportation Options Program and who is also organizing the marketing for 

the upcoming Drive Less Connect Challenge in September. We have placed an order for posters 

and rack cards.  

Summer Schedules- I have been concentrating on making sure that Cannon Beach has schedule 

information accessible for the added Route 21 Weekday service which because it is seasonal is 

not included on the schedule map.  

I have also been in Seaside distributing Streetcar schedules and posters on a regular basis. 

Ridership has not been as good as I would like to see.  

I am ordering more shelter maps so that I can replace them as they become torn or loose at the 

corners. They actually wintered quite well.  

Van Wraps- Glad to say the new van wraps turned out beautifully. Gillespie Graphics worked 

with us and came to Warrenton to apply the first wrap earlier than scheduled so we could be in 

the Seaside and Warrenton 4th of July parades. Added a fawn on the back since these vans are 

smaller. Have been working with Gillespie to finalize the small changes made in the van wraps 

to accommodate the size etc. We are continuing to follow the same designs as on the buses.  

 

 

  

    

 

 

   

 

  121



Human Resource Report 

July Board Meeting 

Tami Carlson 

 

 

• June 7th attended LCHRMA seminar in Astoria.  Topic presented, Effective Workplace Communication: 

Promoting Success Through a Culture of Trust and Belief by Dianna Gould, SHRM-SCP, CAE.  Dianna 

has over 20 years’ experience in the human resource profession and is the field service director for the 

Pacific West Region for the Society of Human Resource Management (SHRM).  In this session Dianna 

shared the benefits of effective workplace communication, strategies for building a culture of trust and 

belief, the importance of effective communication, and the skills needed to develop to be proficient.  The 

ability to communicate effectively is a critical competency to be able to contribute to success. 

 

• Recruitment process for a finance officer/grant administrator resulted in the hiring of Tracy Lofstrom.  

Tracy has a strong background in accounting, bookkeeping and office management.  Welcome Tracy! 

 

• Recruitment process for an operations manager resulted in the hiring of Paul Lewicki.  In May, Paul was 

appointed Interim Operations Manager for the district.  This month there were other applicants in the 

interview process including Paul and Paul was the best candidate for the position.  Congratulations Paul!      

 

• Currently recruiting for several positions at SETD.  Transportation Opts Specialist, Mechanic Assistant 

and Drivers.  Reposting of these positions continue.     

 

• Subscribed to Total Employer Cost of Compensation (TECC).  Membership enables SETD to perform a 

wage/compensation analysis for all positions.  Data survey for the website is a very detailed process but 

end results will be very beneficial.       

 

• Other projects – Completed SDIS health & dental employee open enrollment for 2017-18; prepared RC 

payroll 2016-17 for finance officer.  

        

 

  122



RideCare Report  

July Board Meeting 

Jason Jones 

 

• In the month of June Ride Care has been attempting to replace a Secured Transportation 

provider that left the business in April.  At this time, there is only 1 other provider that are 

working with out of Salem so we are hoping that one of our current providers we are contracted 

with will be able to connect with the state to become Secured Transport approved.  This process 

has been delayed since the Lead individual at the state had retired and his successor is just now 

taking on the duties.  Sam Dickson is now the individual we contact for all things Secured 

Transport and look forward to him working with 2 of our current providers to fill the gap.   

• I was recently in a meeting to discuss alternate forms of Non-Emergent Medical Transportation 

and I was able to discuss why our agreement with the DHS Volunteer drivers was so important.  

Ride Care has the largest roster of Volunteer drivers in state with 30 drivers who will drive for 

us.  This is not to say I have 30 drivers driving every day but depending on availabilities Ride 

Care will field the most Volunteer drivers on any given day.  In a business that is constantly 

being asked to lower costs we can look at the Volunteer program and its very low-cost outline as 

a great tool in lowering costs yet keeping our customer service top notch.  Just this last week, 

Volunteer drivers provided 14,720 miles of NEMT work for us that saved us roughly $15,000 if 

we had to use our paid providers.   Needless to say that my conversation with this group was fun.    

• I have been very pleased to be a part of the team helping SETD beautify and maintain our 

Warrenton facility.  I’m trying to keep to a regular time frame in mowing and keeping a small 

part of my time available to work with Paul during the week.   

• Looks like 10,000 in-bound/out-bound calls per month is the new normal.  Since January Ride 

Care has seen 10K plus calls every month except for February’s 9,460 stumble.  In the first ½ of 

2017 we have averaged 10,349 calls and in June we had our first ever 11,000 calls total.  Our 

previous average in 2016 was only 9,600 calls and in 2015 it was tremendously low 7,038 calls.  

In 2012 our average was 4,450!! There are more members, there are more appointments being 

set up, more verification calls being made for accuracy, more care facilities utilizing NEMT and 

even more Same day or Next day requests. (these calls usually require up to 4 additional calls to 

facilitate the short noticed request) We are busy.   

• At the end of the month I received a call from the Oregon Health Authority’s Ralph Magrish to 

inform me that our ride reimbursement rate was going to be changed.  Even though the majority 

of our NEMT business is done with Care Oregon, OHA still has several members that utilize 

NEMT.  The State calculated that our ride rate needed to be raised from $39/trip to $62/trip.  We 

are pleased that the State saw the need to raise the rates to better come in line with the actual 

costs associated with NEMT services.   

 

  123


	1. July 2017 Board Agenda
	2. Acronym Listing
	7. Board Minutes June 2017 Draft
	9.a SETD Exceptions & Inform Report June 2017
	9.b B QB Profit&Loss General Fund June 17
	9.c QB Profit&Loss RideCare June 2017
	9.d QB Balance Sheet June 2017
	9.e QB AR June 2017
	9.f QB AP June 2017
	9.g QB Checks June 2017
	9.h Card Services June 2017
	10.b1 Cover
	10.b2 Seaside Urban Renewal District
	10.b3 ORS
	11.a Payroll Procedure
	11.b1 Cover
	11.b2 Jim Servino letter of resignation 071717
	11.b3 Policy
	11.d S&D
	11.e Rider Appreciation Day
	11.f Rosa Parks
	11.g Executive Director Evaluation
	11.h Executive Director Employee Agreement
	13. Executive Director Report
	14.a June 2017 Rider Report
	14.b Monthly Op Chart June 2017 - Rider Type
	14.c Monthly Op Chart June 2017 - Ridership by Route
	14.d Operations Monthly Report July 2017
	14.e RIDE ASSIST JUNE-17 REPORT
	14.f Marketing Outreach Report 7-2017 final -
	14.h HR Report
	14.i Ride Care report for July 2017 Board Meeting



